




 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

III. – Minutes – May 25, 2023  



 

 
 

HOUSTON FIRST CORPORATION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
May 25, 2023 – 3:00 P.M.  

Partnership Tower, 701 Avenida de las Americas, Suite 200 
Houston, Texas 77010 

HOUSTON FIRST BOARD ROOM  
_____________________________________________________________________________________  
 

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of Houston First Corporation (the “Corporation” or “HFC”), a 
Texas local corporation created and organized by the City of Houston as a local government 
corporation pursuant to TEX. TRANSP. CODE ANN. §431.101 et seq. and TEX LOC. GOV’T. 
CODE ANN. §394.001 et seq., held a meeting at Partnership Tower, 701 Avenida de las 
Americas, Suite 200, Houston, Harris County, Texas 77010 on Thursday, May 25, 2023, 
commencing at 3:00 p.m. 

Written notice of the meeting including the date, hour, place, and agenda for the meeting was 
posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act.  

The following Board Members participated in the meeting: David Mincberg (Chair), Desrye 
Morgan (Vice-Chair), Sofia Adrogué, Alex Brennan-Martin, Reginald Martin, Ryan Martin, 
Gerald Womack, Council Member Robert Gallegos 

 
I. Call to Order. The Chairman of the Board called the meeting to order at 3:05 p.m. A 

quorum was established at 3:16 p.m. upon the arrival of Sofia Adrogué, Board Member. 
 

II. Public Comments. 
 
Willy Gonzalez, of Unite Here-Houston (“Unite Here”), explained that he represented 
workers in Hilton Americas Hotel (“Hilton”) and Marriott Marquis (“Marriott”). Mr. Gonzalez 
reminded the Board that the pandemic impacted the hospitality industry the hardest and 
described that Unite Here worked with employees at Hilton, Marriott, and Levy at the 
George R. Brown Convention Center (“GRB”) during and after the pandemic. He noted 
that he was attending the meeting to address health insurance concerns. He reported that 
he attempted to communicate with Hilton to ensure workers would retain their health 
insurance, but Hilton did not respond. According to Mr. Gonzalez, Hilton could amend its 
agreement to address his health insurance issues. 
 
Jose Luis Piedra, a Hilton employee, stated that he worked for Hilton for 18 years. Mr. 
Piedra continued that previously, he was stressed due to the uncertainty of his insurance 
status when seeking medical care. According to Mr. Piedra, medical facilities asked him if 
he was insured, but his inconsistent insurance status caused anxiety. Mr. Piedra noted 
that he planned to visit cardiologists and lung specialists through July 2023, but was 
unsure if he would be insured. He added that he did not have health insurance issues 
before the pandemic, and he and his coworkers sought assistance. 
 



 

 
 

Oscar Galvez, a Hilton employee, said he worked for Hilton for 11 years and wished to 
communicate his health insurance concerns. He provided that during Hilton’s busy work 
periods, he and his coworkers work 14 to 15-hour days; however, during Hilton’s slow 
periods, there was not enough work to qualify for health insurance. Mr. Galvez explained 
how his hands, shoulders, and back would become numb and how he was concerned 
about not having health insurance. He said he and his coworkers attended the meeting 
because they enjoyed their jobs and were proud to serve. However, he and his coworkers 
seek Hilton to recognize their concerns.  
 
Niorca Perez, a Hilton employee, stated that she worked for Hilton for 20 years and 
received a bypass in 2014 due to a severe medical condition. Ms. Perez also indicated 
that her diabetes and progressive kidney failure required medication and highlighted that 
she was alarmed about how Hilton mistreated her after her years of service. She asked 
the Board to help her and her coworkers acquire the coverage they deserved. 
 
Veronica Ortez, a Hilton employee, stated that she worked for Hilton for five years and 
attended the meeting to ask for assistance with health insurance. She provided that she 
required surgery, prohibiting her from working for two months. According to Ms. Ortez, her 
procedure would occur during Hilton’s slower working months, specifically July 2023 and 
August 2023, when she would likely be uninsured. Ms. Ortez asked that the Board handle 
the issue with Hilton on behalf of Hilton’s employees and their families. She also specified 
that she looked forward to a positive solution for a permanent fix. 
 
Olga Mireles, a Hilton employee, stated that she worked for Hilton for ten years. Ms. 
Mireles explained that she had diabetes and a heart issue and how everyone should treat 
one another equally and humanely. Ms. Mireles said she felt dehumanized and scared to 
seek medical treatment due to the inconsistency of her health insurance coverage. Ms. 
Mireles emphasized that HFC was a decisive and responsive organization and asked that 
HFC aid Hilton’s employees; otherwise, Hilton’s employees would be left without health 
insurance when business slows. 

 
Modesta Reyes, a Hilton employee, emphasized that the Board heard her coworkers’ 
statements. Ms. Reyes indicated that she did not need health insurance because she had 
Medicare; nevertheless, she supported her coworkers because it pained her to see them 
unable to pay for medication or treatment. Ms. Reyes illuminated that she and her 
coworkers assisted their peers without coverage by speaking with Hilton’s Human 
Resources Department and General Manager, but they did not respond. Ms. Reyes 
highlighted that the months with the least amount of work were imminent, which would 
exacerbate the situation. She added that Hilton reduced full-time employees’ hours to four 
hours per day, which negatively affected their qualification for health insurance. She also 
noted that employees took time to prepare and pay to get to work to only work four hours. 
Ms. Reyes said that HFC could make Hilton comply and asked that it immediately act. She 
implored the Board to let her, and her coworkers know what they needed to do to have 
health insurance, and they would do what was necessary. She said it was not just for 
Hilton to fail to respond to their requests after she worked for the Hotel for eighteen years. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

Norma Martinez, a Hilton employee, shared that Hilton’s employees had to verify on the 
first of each month if they had insurance. Ms. Martinez explained that previously she 
contacted her insurance company on the first of the month, which informed her that she 
was insured; however, upon arrival to her appointment, the facility required her to pay out 
of pocket because it conveyed that she was uninsured. Ms. Martinez stated that Hilton’s 
Human Resources Department informed her that it failed to cancel her insurance on the 
first of the month. Ms. Martinez added it was stressful not knowing whether she would 
have health insurance when she scheduled her appointments. Ms. Martinez also indicated 
that she received a stress test before the meeting and was trying to complete all her 
medical visits this month since she had insurance. According to Ms. Martinez, she went 
without her medications during her uninsured months because her medicine costs $400 
compared to a $5 copay when insured. She asked the Board Members to help resolve this 
issue for her and her coworkers. 
 
Chairman David Mincberg stated that the Board could not act and asked Michael 
Heckman, President & CEO, to investigate and report on the matter at the next meeting 
scheduled for June 22nd, 2023. Mr. Gonzalez expressed his frustration and disappointment 
with HFC. He said he believed that HFC was aware of this issue because HFC released 
a statement that the matter only affected 24 employees and because there was a 
collective bargaining agreement. He added that he knew that the City of Houston 
contacted HFC and reiterated that HFC understood the problem. Chairman Mincberg 
clarified that HFC was aware of the issue and that his statement referred to his inability to 
address the concern since it was not on the agenda. 
 
Gerald Womack, Board Member, suggested that Mr. Heckman discuss this matter with 
Jacques D’Rovencourt, Hilton’s General Manager, who was receptive to resolving issues 
in the past. Mr. Womack requested that Mr. Heckman speak with Mr. D’Rovencourt before 
the next Board meeting due to the issue’s urgency. Mr. Heckman agreed to meet with Mr. 
D’Rovencourt to define the problems and review the contents of the comprehensively 
negotiated agreement entered into in July 2022. Mr. Gonzalez suggested that the union 
speak with HFC to clarify any mischaracterizations, and Mr. Heckman agreed to meet with 
Mr. Gonzalez whenever he was available. 

 
Reginald Martin, Board Member, thanked the attendees for their time. He explained he 
understood the importance of front-line workers because of his twenty years as a chef and 
assured the Hilton employees that the Board would work through this process. Mr. Martin 
voiced his concern for HFC’s lack of labor relations and his surprise that HFC lacked an 
employee tasked with avoiding the worsening of labor issues. 
 
Ms. Adrogué thanked everyone for their attendance, service, and passion for their work. 
She added that many Board Members learned about the issue for the first time during the 
meeting and assured the speakers that their stories were impactful. She also reiterated 
that HFC would investigate the problem and that she hoped for a positive outcome. 
 
Alex Brennan-Martin, Board Member, stated that HFC needed to be legally cautious 
because HFC was not a party to any of the contracts and could cause a contractual 
breach. He recommended seeking legal counsel before engaging in negotiations. 
 
 
 



 

 
 

III. Review and approval of minutes from prior meeting. Following a duly seconded 
motion, the April 27th, 2023, minutes were approved as presented. 

 
IV. Presentations, Reports, and Updates. 

A. Houston First Chairman’s Report 
 

Chairman Mincberg reported that he toured Lynn Wyatt Square for the Performing Arts 
and that it looked terrific. He noted the project had a few challenges, but was 
advancing. 
 
He informed the Board Members that the Texas Chapter of the American Public Works 
Association (“APWA”) recognized HFC as APWA’s Public Works Projects of the Year 
– Disaster or Emergency Construction Repair (Greater than $75 million) in 2023 for 
HFC’s Wortham Theater Center work. 
 
B. Market Update and Financial Report  

 
Nathan Tollett, Vice President of Citywide Convention Sales, reported that in HFC’s 
first quarter for 2023, hotel revenues were up by 23% compared to the same period in 
2022. According to Mr. Tollett, HFC had not recently experienced any significant event 
cancellations. Mr. Tollett also explained that compared to 2019, HFC revenues were 
up by 13.7%, and he emphasized that demand was up 5% compared to 2019, with 
more supply this year.  
 
Mr. Tollett identified the competitive markets by Central Business District and 
highlighted that Houston’s occupancy rate ranks fifth in the top 25 markets in the nation 
at 60.8% compared to 63% in 2019. Mr. Tollett explained that Houston ranks sixth, in 
ADR, in the downtown market, with rates up by 11.4% compared to 2019. He also 
illuminated that lodging, including short-term rentals, grew from October 2022 to March 
2023 and returned to $300 million in aggregate revenue. He added that short-term 
rentals comprised less than 10% of total revenue. 

 
Mr. Tollett transitioned into reporting on the three recent significant events, including 
the 2023 NCAA Final Four, the Taylor Swift Concert, and the First Robotics 
Competition. In his comparison of the 2023 NCAA Final Four to 2016, Mr. Tollett stated 
that occupancy was down 4.6% due to 16,000 additional rooms added to the market, 
ADR was up 5.1%, and market revenue was up 29.2%. He also conveyed that the 
Taylor Swift Concert and First Robotics Competition significantly impacted market 
revenue during the weekend of the events. Mr. Tollett explained how the Downtown 
market was up by 115%, the Galleria market was up by 152%, the Medical 
Center/NRG market was up by 285%, and Houston’s total market revenue was almost 
$34 million. 
 
Ryan Martin, Board Member, exclaimed his amazement at the results and urged HFC 
to continue to focus on selling conventions two to three years from the event date. 
 
Frank Wilson, Chief Financial Officer, reported HFC’s financial performance from 2019 
through 2022. He stated that FEMA reimbursements from Hurricane Harvey in 2017 
trickled to HFC between 2019 and 2021. Mr. Wilson explained that revenue recovery 
from 2021 and 2022 grew by 72.6% year over year and had a 9.8% increase over 
2019. He also noted that expense recovery in 2021 and 2022 was 39%. 



 

 
 

 
Mr. Wilson reported that in 2022, total revenues exceeded budget by $18.8 million, 
primarily comprised of Hilton’s Net Cash of $41 million, which was $11 million better 
than its expected $30 million budget. He added that total expenses were $2.5 million 
below budget, resulting in a variance of $21.4 million in total revenues less expenses. 

 
Mr. Wilson transitioned into identifying revenues with the more significant favorable 
variances, like $11 million for Hilton’s Net Cash, $3 Million for Venues, $4.4 million for 
Parking, and $727,000 for Hotel Occupancy Tax (“HOT”). Mr. Wilson also explained 
expenses with notable favorable variances like $3.8 million for Personnel, $1.0 million 
for Food & Beverage, $786,000 for Facility Maintenance, $700,000 for Travel, 
Promotion & Events, and $767,000 for Advertising & Promotion. He illuminated that 
the favorable variances were because, in 2022, meetings returned to GRB and the 
convention district, like fourteen major meetings, each hosting thousands of attendees. 
 
Mr. Wilson reported significant revenues and expenses year-to-date as of April 30th, 
2023. He stated that all significant revenues, except for Avenida Parking, 
outperformed their budget through April 30th, 2023. According to Mr. Wilson, Final Four 
parking was less than anticipated due to parking diversions to the Theater District. He 
also emphasized that as of May 5th, HOT exceeded expectations by $1.7 million, and 
Hilton’s Net Cash was $3.6 million better than expected due to solid group and local 
catering business. Mr. Wilson highlighted that March 2023 was a record month for 
Hilton, which produced $14 million in operating revenue and $7.8 million in EBITDA. 
According to Mr. Wilson, the Hotel experienced strong transient demand caused by 
spring break and the final week of the Rodeo. He also noted that the Final Four drove 
group stays. 

 
Mr. Wilson explained that Food and Beverage (“F&B”) revenues continued 
outperforming other revenues relative to budget. He added that March 2023 
experienced almost a $2.9 million favorable variance due to large groups, including 
CERA Week, United Rentals, and the Final Four. He noted that, except for F&B, all 
expenses were near or below budget. According to Mr. Wilson, due to unfilled 
positions, Personnel variance was the highest at $496,000; however, between 
February 2023 and April 2023, HFC made nine new hires, which would likely reduce 
variance for the remainder of the year. 
 
According to Mr. Wilson, Security and Building Maintenance had significant budget 
variances of $341,000 and $444,000 due to staffing levels in HFC facilities. He 
emphasized that reductions were helpful due to an unexpected $1 million increase in 
yearly property insurance costs. Mr. Wilson noted through April 30th, 2023, HFC’s Total 
Actual Revenues of $88.8 million exceeded Total Expenses of $75.1 million by $13.6 
million, primarily driven by the $15 million favorable revenue variance to budget. Mr. 
Wilson explained that $49 million in Operating Revenues provided a favorable 
variance with $11.5 million in Operating Revenues and $39.6 million in Non-Operating 
Revenues, which exceeded expectations by $3.5 million. He added that Expenses 
exceeded budget by $276,000, but it was still early in the year, and he anticipated 
increased expenses in the months ahead.  
 
Chairman Mincberg acknowledged Mr. Dennis Littlejohn, III, from Congresswoman 
Sheila Jackson Lee’s office presence at the meeting. 
 



 

 
 

C. Houston First President & CEO’s Report  
 

Mr. Heckman provided a legislative update on Senate Bill 1057 (“SB 1057”), which 
would provide state funding to transform the GRB and convention district. He stated 
that in 2013, Dallas and Fort Worth passed state legislation to allow incremental state 
HOT to return to municipalities for defined projects. He added that Houston was 
omitted then, but pursued similar legislation during this legislative session through an 
amendment. Mr. Heckman emphasized that SB 1057 achieved bipartisan support and 
passed the Senate in April 2023 by a 26 to 5 vote and recently passed the House by 
a 110 to 29 vote. He clarified that SB 1057 must return to the Senate for concurrence, 
which should pass, and then the legislature would send the bill to the Governor for his 
signature. Mr. Heckman highlighted that SB 1057 might provide Houston with up to $2 
billion in funding from incremental HOT. 
 
Mr. Heckman congratulated the HFC team for an outstanding job on the 2023 NCAA 
Men’s Final Four. He also informed the Board that HFC planned to provide it with 
detailed information about upcoming programming and events. Mr. Womack asked 
HFC for procurement information for the Final Four. Mr. Heckman informed Mr. 
Womack that the Sports Authority would have procurement information. 

 
Mr. Heckman transitioned into reporting on Houston Week and explained that HFC 
sought to improve Houston Week in Mexico by making it bigger and stronger than 
previously. He noted that Mexico was Houston’s most significant foreign market. 
According to Mr. Heckman, this year’s trip would include representatives from the 
Texas Medical Center, the Houston Rockets, and a larger delegation led by Mayor 
Sylvester Turner. He also conveyed that two STEM-related Memorandums of 
Understanding were signed. 
 
Jorge Franz, Vice President of Tourism and Industry Relations, mentioned that most 
tourists from Mexico were booking travel through agencies, wholesalers, and tour 
operators. He continued that it was important for Houston Week to include 
representatives from hotels, museums, airport systems, airlines, destination 
management companies, and other Houston entities that sell the Houston experience 
because the Mexican travel sector shifted. According to Mr. Franz, Mexican travel 
industry members were new and required training to market Houston most effectively. 
Mr. Franz added that Houston Week was also an attempt to remedy a drop in Houston 
travel, which had not returned to pre-pandemic levels.  
 
Holly Clapham, Chief Marketing Officer, stated that the Houston Week concept 
amplified Houston marketing and noted that the events needed consolidation and 
branding. Ms. Clapham added that 2022 was HFC’s first integrated marketing 
campaign launched in Mexico. She highlighted that this year, seventy media outlets 
rsvp’d to the Hola Houston event, three times the amount from 2022. According to Ms. 
Clapham, HFC left Houston Week with 275 million media impressions and planned to 
coordinate fourteen trips to Houston for Mexican journalists and about thirty 
influencers. Ms. Clapham highlighted that Houston was so amplified in Mexico that 
chefs volunteered to leave their Houston restaurants for a week to participate in the 
event. She concluded, “Houston came, Houston left, Houston remains through 2023.” 
 
Reginald Martin suggested that HFC present its Houston Week report at the 
subsequent Sales, Tourism, and Marketing Committee Meeting. 



 

 
 

 
Roksan Okan-Vick, Urban Development Officer, reported that Lynn Wyatt Square’s 
construction was progressing well and had noticeably advanced since its landscaping 
installation. Ms. Okan-Vick also clarified that the project completion date had shifted 
to early September due to unforeseen delays caused by product unavailability and 
issues related to extending the park. She also added that HFC would be planning tours 
for interested Board Members. Ms. Okan-Vick announced that in addition to receiving 
the APWA award, HFC received national recognition from the National APWA for 
Excellence in Management and Administration of Public Works Projects. 
 
Mr. Heckman announced that HFC would host the third annual DE&I Hospitality 
Industry Internship Program, which received positive feedback. He indicated the 
program would run from June 5th, 2023, through July 28th,2023. Mr. Heckman also 
announced that HFC would again participate in the Tourism Diversity Matters’ 
Apprenticeship Program by employing one apprentice in 2023. He highlighted HFC 
hired Cory Young as a Convention Services Representative after his 2022 
apprenticeship.  

 
V. Adjourn. The meeting adjourned at 4:53 p.m. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

V. (A) – Consideration and possible approval of the Houston First 2022 
Annual Financial Audit. 















































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

V. (B) – Consideration and possible approval of a Commercial Waste 
Removal and Recycling Services Agreement between Houston First 
Corporation and Republic Services of Houston. 





BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MEETING

HOUSTON FIRST CORPORATION

1  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G

HFC BOARD ROOM

Partnership Tower
Thursday, June 22, 2023

3:00 p.m.

Lost  Lake –  Buffa lo Bayou Park
WASH INGTON CORRIDOR



Wortham Theater Center
THEATER DI S TR ICT

June 22, 2023

HFC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Anyone who wishes to address the Board 

during the Public Comment session may do 

so by signing up on the Public Comment 

sign-in sheet at the front of the room.

PUBLIC 
COMMENTS

2  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



May 25, 2023

MINUTES

June 22, 2023

HFC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

3  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G

Contempora ry Arts M useum Houston
M U SEU M  DIS TR ICT



DAVID M. MINCBERG

CHAIRMAN'S 
REPORT

HOUSTON FIRST

HFC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

4  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G

Houston Arboretum 
M EM ORIAL PARK

June 22, 2023



MICHAEL HECKMAN

PRESIDENT & CEO 
REPORT

HOUSTON FIRST

June 22, 2023

HFC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

5  H F C  B O A R D M E E T I N G

M ura ls for M ankind  –  Lu la  Goce
DOWNTOWN 



6  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G

MAJOR REVENUES & EXPENSES
Y T D  A S  O F   M A Y  3 1 ,  2 0 2 3

MAJOR REVENUES 2023 Budget 2023 Actual
Over (Under) 

Budget ($)

Over (Under) 

Budget (%)

Hotel Occupancy Tax Collections $42,500,000 $50,716,818 $8,216,818 19.3%

Hilton Americas Net Cash $18,625,000 $24,500,000 $5,875,000 31.5%

GRB Facility Rental $3,442,720 $3,694,551 $251,831 7.3%

GRB Food and Beverage $11,793,088 $15,010,682 $3,217,594 27.3%

Parking Revenue-Avenida $5,048,747 $4,569,081 ($479,666) (9.5%)

Parking Revenue-Theater District $2,687,589 $3,392,677 $705,088 26.2%

MAJOR EXPENSES 2023 Budget 2023 Actual
Over (Under) 

Budget ($)

Over (Under) 

Budget (%)

Personnel $10,782,251 $10,280,842 ($501,409) (4.7%)

Security Contract $2,267,347 $1,864,379 ($402,968) (17.8%)

Bldg. Maintenance Contract $2,584,056 $2,190,921 ($393,135) (15.2%)

Parking Contract $1,016,562 $1,040,103 $23,541 2.3%

Janitorial Contract $2,750,080 $2,814,289 $64,209 2.3%

GRB Food and Beverage $7,079,317 $9,616,835 $2,537,518 35.8%



7  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Y T D  A S  O F  M A Y  3 1 ,  2 0 2 3

2023 Budget 2023 Actual Variance

TOTAL REVENUES $90,493,990 $106,739,216      $16,245,226 

TOTAL EXPENSES $89,165,890 $85,031,826 $(4,134,064)

TOTAL REVENUES     LESS 
EXPENSES

$1,328,100 $21,707,390 $20,379,290 



Juneteenth – The Musical 
Journey Continues

• June 16th & June 17th at Miller 
Outdoor Theatre.

• 2-night musical journey through the 
sounds of Blues, Classic R&B and 
Hip-Hop, Jazz and Gospel.

2023 JUNETEENTH CELEBRATIONS

8  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G
Miller Outdoor Theatre



2023 JUNETEENTH CELEBRATIONS

9  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G Avenida Houston

Juneteenth – A Celebration 
of Freedom

• June 18th at Avenida Houston 
& Discovery Green.

• Celebration featured 
entertainment, market, music, 
and more.



RNC UPDATE

10  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



BOARD BUSINESS

June 22, 2023

HFC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

A.  Consideration and possible approval of 
the Houston First 2022 Annual Financial 
Audit.

11  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G

Rocket  Pa rk
SOU THEAST  HOU STON

PRESENTERS

FRANK WILSON
Chief  Financial  Of f icer,  HFC

STEPHANY BLAND
Cont rol ler,  HFC

TINO ROBLEDO
Senior Di rect or,  Audi t  Services — RSM



INCLUDED:

• Venues (operations 
formerly included in CEFD 
and Partnership Tower)

• Hilton Americas-Houston 
Hotel

• Visit Houston (Destination 
Marketing, Tourism, 
Destination Sales) 

• Parking Garages

ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT SCOPE

12  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G

EXCLUDED:

• City’s Convention and 
Entertainment Facilities 
Department (CEFD) debt 

and fixed assets



USES OF FUNDING

  $25.0 M  Pay Down Debts

  $13.0 M  Capital Project 
Funding without 
Debt Increase  

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

13  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 
FROM 2021 TO 2022

 $38.0 M  Increase in 2022

 



NET POSITION
D E C E M B E R  3 1 ,  2 0 2 2

*

2022 2021 Variance

Current assets $92,257,968 $84,508,871 $7,749,097

Non-current assets $140,314,020 $141,762,975 ($1,448,955)

Capital assets $477,480,452 $486,369,297  ($8,888,845)

TOTAL ASSETS $710,052,440 $712,641,143 ($2,588,703)

Liabilities

Current liabilities $74,342,550 $83,501,919 $9,159,369

Long-term liabilities $452,392,633 $470,234,511 $17,841,878

TOTAL LIABILITIES $526,735,183 $553,736,430  $27,001,247

Deferred Inflow/outflow $37,266,333 $50,812,621  $13,546,288

14  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



TOTAL ASSETS DECREASED $2.6 MILLION OVER 2021

• Current assets increased by $7.7 M  (majority of change is 
deposits held by others offset by the decrease in cash 
balance)

• Non-current assets increased by $1.5 M ($3.0 M is due to 
increased in capital assets and $2.1 M is due to decrease 
in lease receivable)

• Capital assets decreased $8.9 M due to depreciation of 
$24 M offset by acquisitions of $15.5 M.

TOTAL LIABILITIES DECREASED $27.0 MILLION OVER 2021

• Principal payments on underlying bonds - $25.0 M 

NET POSITION OVERVIEW

15  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



• $86.5 M  Hotel Revenues

• $74.2 M  Intergovernmental Revenues

               from Primary Government 

               (HOT + Pledged Parking + Harvey 

                      Reimbursements - CEFD Debt Service)

• $41.1 M  Venue Revenues

• $18.3 M  Avenida Parking Revenues

REVENUES IN 2022
F R O M  H I G H  T O  L O W

16  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



OPERATING REVENUES VARIANCE SUMMARY

17  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G

$
8

6
,4

6
8

,1
0

9

$
4

2
,6

4
7

,2
8

0

$
4

1
,0

6
4

,5
2

4

$
2

1
,0

8
8

,5
6

9

$
1

8
,2

5
9

,3
2

9

$
1

1
,5

3
0

,1
3

2

$
6

,7
9

4
,4

8
7

$
3

,3
2

2
,3

4
6



OPERATING REVENUES VARIANCE SUMMARY

18  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G

2022 V. 2021 Revenue Variance Chart

Revenue Type Variance ($) Variance (%)

Hotel $43,820,829 103%

Venue $19,975,955 95%

Parking $6,729,197 58%

Other $3,472,141 105%



• $48.8 M Venue Expenses 
            (Maintenance, Personnel, Janitorial, Security, Utilities)

• $35.9 M General and Administrative Expenses 
  (Indirect Marketing, Finance, Management Fees, Rebates, Legal, 
                              Information Technology)

• $28.3 M Hotel Expenses
  (Cost of Goods Sold, Direct Costs related to Hilton)

• $20.1 M Visit Houston Expenses
  (Destination Marketing, Tourism, Destination Sales)

EXPENSES IN 2022
F R O M  H I G H  T O  L O W

19  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



OPERATING EXPENSES VARIANCE SUMMARYOPERATING EXPENSES VARIANCE SUMMARY

20  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G

$
2

8
,3

2
2

,2
6

7

$
1

5
,1

7
8

,2
9

6

$
4

8
,7

6
6

,2
4

6

$
3

1
,1

8
9

,5
1

8

$
8

,2
8

4
,6

2
1

$
6

,4
5

0
,0

2
8

$
2

0
,0

8
9

,0
2

0

$
1

1
,9

3
3

,4
2

7 $
3

5
,8

7
1

,1
9

2

$
2

7
,6

3
7

,3
9

8



2022 V. 2021 Expense Variance Chart

Expense Type Variance ($) Variance (%)

Hotel $13,143,971 87%

Venue $17,576,728 56%

Parking $1,834,593 28%

Visit Houston $8,155,593 68%

General Adm. $8,233,794 30%

OPERATING EXPENSES VARIANCE SUMMARYOPERATING EXPENSES VARIANCE SUMMARY

21  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



• Total operating revenues increased 94% to $152.6 M 

due to the recovery in the hospitality and convention 

industries from the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Hotel revenues benefited from the increase in leisure 

travel in Houston and increase in occupancy rate. 

• Operating expenses increased 43% to $166.5 M in 2022 

from $116.6 M in 2021. The increase was due to the 

recovery, noting a $13.0 M increase in hotel expenses 

and $17.6 M increase in venue expenses.

 

OPERATING REVENUES/EXPENSES VARIANCES
2 0 2 2  V E R S US  2 0 2 1

22  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



• Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 
increased $32.4 M from 2021

• It is a combination of:

• $16.0 M one time cost in 2021 related to pension 
settlement; and  

• $17.1 M revenue increase from primary government.

NON-OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSE VARIANCE(S)
2 0 2 2  V E S US  2 0 2 1

23  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



2022 ANNUAL REPORT VS. CFO MONTHLY REPORT

24  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G

• $38.0 M   Net Gain in 2022 Annual Report

• $13.0 M   Net Gain in CFO Monthly Report as of 12/31/22

Expenses in CFO report but not in the 

Annual Report

$33.0 M  All Principal Payment 

$16.0 M  Interest related to 

               CEFD debts

Two Expenses not in CFO Report Scope

$22.0 M  Depreciation Expense

$3.0 M   Additional Pension Expense 

REPORT SCOPE VARIANCE HIGHLIGHTS



FY 2022 AUDIT RESULTS

Report to the Benefits, Compensation and, 
Finance Committee and the Board of Directors

June 15, 2023

HOUSTON FIRST 
CORPORATION

Title Page

25  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



June 15, 2023

To the Members of the Benefits, Compensation and Finance Committee and the Board of Directors of Houston First 

Corporation 

We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the basic financial statements of Houston First Corporation (the 

Corporation) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022. This report summarizes certain matters required by 

professional standards to be communicated to you in your oversight responsibility for the Corporation’s financial reporting 

process.  

It will be our pleasure to respond to any questions you have regarding this report. We appreciate the opportunity to continue 

to be of service to Houston First Corporation.

2

Introductory Letter

26  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Helping you meet 
requirements, 
turn challenges 
into opportunities 
and improve your 
business.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 4

DIVERSITY PARTICIPATION 5

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

Accounting policies and practices 6

Significant accounting estimates 7

Pension accounting pronouncement impact 10

Audit Adjustment and uncorrected 
misstatements

11

Observations about the audit process 12

Independence 13

Contents

27  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



Audit Status

The 2022 audit is nearing completion. 

Upon approval by management, we expect to issue an unqualified opinion 
on the financial statements.

Significant Changes to the Planned Audit Strategy 

There were no significant changes to the planned audit strategy as 
communicated to the Benefits, Compensation and Finance Committee (the 
Committee) in our report dated March 21, 2023.

Significant Risks

We did not identify any significant risks subsequent to those we 
communicated to you in our report dated March 21, 2023. 

Adoption of New Accounting Policy

In 2022, the Corporation adopted the accounting and financial reporting 
standard for Pensions.

Audit Adjustments or Uncorrected Misstatements

During our audit, we did not identify any audit adjustments and uncorrected 
misstatements. 

Deficiencies in Internal Control

We did not identify any reportable internal control deficiencies.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

4
28  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



• Maintaining the diversity participation commitment.

• Continue to work with Yoe CPA, LLC, a subcontractor to RSM. 

• Yoe CPA, LLC worked side-by-side with RSM service team throughout the 

audit.

• Yoe CPA, LLC was issued RSM laptops to facilitate integration of the two firms 

and provide for a seamless client service experience.

• Areas primarily worked on included the following:

– Investments

– Capital assets

– Long-term debt

– Selected income statement line items

DIVERSITY PARTICIPATION-YOE CPA, LLC

29  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

The following required communications summarize our responsibilities regarding the financial statement audit as well as observations arising from 
our audit that are significant and relevant to your responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process.

Accounting policies and practices

6

Matter to Report Yes No

Changes to the planned scope and 

timing of the audit

ü We did not have changes to the planned scope and timing of our audit. 

Accounting policies and practices

Preferability of accounting 

policies and practices 

ü Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, management may 

select among alternative accounting practices in certain circumstances. 

In our view, in such circumstances, management has selected the preferable accounting practice.

• During the period ending December 31, 2022, the Corporation extended certain retirement 

benefits (pension benefits) to its employees.  The Corporation adopted the accounting and 

financial reporting standards of Statement No. 68 of the Governmental Accounting Standards 

Board -Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 

27.  Statement No. 68 established standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred 

outflows or resources, deferred inflows of resources and expenses for pension benefits provided 

to the employees of state and local government employers through pension plans that are 

administered through a trust. 

Significant accounting policies ü We did not identify any significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which 

there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Significant unusual 

transactions

ü We did not identify any significant unusual transactions.

30  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable

Accounting policy

An allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable has been established based on historical experience and any specific 

customer collection issues that have been identified.

Management’s estimation process

The determination is made based on the account receivable aging report at end of year with a specific focus on 

outstanding balances older than 90 days and consideration for the specific customer collection issues identified at year 

end.

Basis for our conclusion on the reasonableness of the estimate

We concluded the estimates used by management are reasonable

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon management’s current judgment. 
The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and experience about past and current events, and certain assumptions 
about future events. 

Significant Accounting Estimates

7

(in thousands) 2022 2021

The allowance for 

doubtful accounts

$4,256,168 $4,661,592 

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable

Accounting policy

An allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable has been established based on historical experience and any specific 

customer collection issues that have been identified.

Management’s estimation process

The determination is made based on the account receivable aging report at end of year with a specific focus on 

outstanding balances older than 90 days and consideration for the specific customer collection issues identified at year 

end.

Basis for our conclusion on the reasonableness of the estimate

We concluded the estimates used by management are reasonable

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon management’s current judgment. 
The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and experience about past and current events, and certain assumptions 
about future events. 

Significant Accounting Estimates

7

(in thousands) 2022 2021

The allowance for 

doubtful accounts

$4,256,168 $4,661,592 

31  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

The Depreciable Life of Property and Equipment

Accounting policy

The depreciable life of property and equipment is set at the estimated useful life of the related asset.

Management’s estimation process

The determination is made at the time the asset is placed into service and involves various judgments and assumptions, 

including the estimated useful life and prior experience.

Basis for our conclusion on the reasonableness of the estimate

We concluded the estimates used by management are reasonable.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon management’s current judgment. 
The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and experience about past and current events, and certain assumptions 
about future events. 

Significant Accounting Estimates

8

(in thousands) 2022

The Depreciable Life of 

Property and 

Equipment

3 years to 

40 years on 

Straight Line 

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

The Depreciable Life of Property and Equipment

Accounting policy

The depreciable life of property and equipment is set at the estimated useful life of the related asset.

Management’s estimation process

The determination is made at the time the asset is placed into service and involves various judgments and assumptions, 

including the estimated useful life and prior experience.

Basis for our conclusion on the reasonableness of the estimate

We concluded the estimates used by management are reasonable.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon management’s current judgment. 
The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and experience about past and current events, and certain assumptions 
about future events. 

Significant Accounting Estimates

8

(in thousands) 2022

The Depreciable Life of 

Property and 

Equipment

3 years to 

40 years on 

Straight Line 

32  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

Leases

Accounting policy

The policy requires recognition of certain assets and liabilities for leases 

that are considered long term and require a present value calculation 

using a discount rate which may be an imputed rate/incremental 

borrowing rate.

Management’s estimation process

The calculation of the present value is made upon the execution of a 

lease agreement/implementation of the standard based on the terms and 

conditions on the date of implementation (January 1, 2020).

Basis for our conclusion on the reasonableness of the estimate

We concluded the estimates used by management are reasonable 

based on the present value calculations and related terms used at the 

date of implementation and changes made subsequent to the initial 

measurement date.

Leases 2022

Lease Receivable as a 

Lessor

Lease Payable as a 

Lessee

$56,176,612 

($9,944,194)

Net Pension Liability

Accounting policy

The policy requires recognition of the net pension liability, deferred 

outflows, deferred inflows and pension expense based on the calculation 

provided by the City of Houston for the Corporation’s proportionate share 

of net pension liability and related balances.

Management’s estimation process

The management of the City of Houston obtains an independent 

actuarial valuation for its Houston Municipal Employee Pension Plan (the 

Plan). The City of Houston provided HFC its proportionate share of the 

City’s net pension liability. The allocation of the proportionate percentage 

is based on total HFC employer contributions in relation to total employer 

contributions to the Plan. HFC reviews/approves the calculation of the 

related balances of its proportionate share of the totals for participation in 

the Plan.  

Basis for our conclusion on the reasonableness of the estimate

We concluded the estimates used by management are reasonable 

based on the use of an actuarial specialist who reviewed the 

assumptions used in calculating the pension liability of the Plan. 

Net Pension Liability 2022

Pension Liability ($11,069,398)

 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon management’s current judgment. 
The process used by management encompasses their knowledge and experience about past and current events, and certain assumptions 
about future events. 

Significant Accounting Estimates

9
33  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



Pension Accounting Pronouncement Impact

The following is the impact of the pension accounting pronouncement as of December 31, 2022:

Pension Accounting 

10

Account Total Pension values Houston First Corporation’s  

Proportionate share (.0068763)

Net pension liability $1,609,795,214 $11,069,000

Current pension expense 

Amortization of change in proportionate share

$38,788,992 $267,000

$2,778,000

Deferred outflow of resources

Change in proportionate share

(differences between actual and expected 

experience)

$19,452,212 $134,000

$10,719,000

Deferred Inflow of resources

(difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments—includes 

immaterial amounts of experience and 

assumption changes)

$372,562,031 $2,561,839

34  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

There were no audit adjustments made to the final trial balance presented to us for the audit.

We are not aware of any uncorrected misstatements other than misstatements that are 
clearly trivial.

AUDIT 
ADJUSTMENTS

UNCORRECTED 
MISSTATEMENTS

Audit Adjustments and Uncorrected Misstatements

11
35  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

Matter to Report Yes No

Observations about the audit process

Significant issues discussed 

with management
ü No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed or the subject of correspondence with 

management.

Disagreements with 

management
ü There were no disagreements with management.

Significant difficulties 

encountered in performing the 

audit

ü We did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing with management during the audit.

Consultations with other 

accountants
ü We are not aware of any consultations management had with other accountants about accounting or 

auditing matters.

Difficult or contentious matters 

that required consultation
ü We did not encounter any significant and difficult or contentious matters that required consultation 

outside our engagement team.

Observations About the Audit Process

12
36  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

Shared Responsibilities: AICPA Independence

The AICPA regularly emphasizes that auditor independence is a joint responsibility and is managed most effectively when management, 
audit committees, and audit firms work together in considering compliance with AICPA independence rules. For RSM to fulfill its 
professional responsibility to maintain and monitor independence, management, the audit committee, and RSM each play an important 
role.

• AICPA rules require independence both of mind and in appearance when providing audit and 

other attestation services. RSM is to ensure that the AICPA’s General Requirements for 

performing non-attest services are adhered to and included in all letters of engagement. 

• Maintain a system of quality control over compliance with independence rules and firm policies. 

Independence

13

• Timely inform RSM, before the effective date of transactions or other business changes, of the 

following:

- New affiliates, directors, officers, or person in financial reporting oversight roles.

- Change in reporting entity impacting affiliates such as subsidiaries, partnerships, related 

entities, investments, joint venture, component units, jointly governed organizations.

• Provide necessary affiliate information such as new or updated investment structure charts, as 

well as financial information required to perform materiality calculations needed for making affiliate 

determinations.

• Understand and conclude on the permissibility, prior to the Corporation and its affiliates, officers, 

directors, or persons in a decision-making capacity, engaging in business relationships with RSM.

• Not entering into relationships resulting in RSM, RSM covered persons or their close family 

members, temporarily or permanently acting as an officer, director, or person in an accounting or 

financial reporting oversight role at the Company.

Our responsibilities

The Corporation’s 
responsibilities

37  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



RSM US LLP is a limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firm of RSM International, a global network of independent audit, tax and consulting firms. The 
member firms of RSM International collaborate to provide services to global clients, but are separate and distinct legal entities that cannot obligate each other. Each 

member firm is responsible only for its own acts and omissions, and not those of any other party. Visit rsmus.com/about for more information regarding RSM US LLP 

and RSM International. RSM® and the RSM logo are registered trademarks of RSM International Association. RSM, the RSM logo and the power of being understood 
are registered trademarks of RSM International Association. © 2021 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.

Joel Perez
Partner, Consulting Services

Audit Services 
210 253 1611

joel.perez@rsmus.com

Katherine Lutz
Manager, Audit Services

512 539 5806
katherine.lutz@rsmus.com

Tino Robledo
Senior Director and Engagement 

Leader, Audit Services

512 539 5759

tino.robledo@rsmus.com

Roberto Gonzalez
Senior, Audit Services

210 253 1565

roberto.gonzalez@rsmus.com

RSM CONTACTS

Back Page

38  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G



BOARD BUSINESS

June 22, 2023

HFC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

B.  Consideration and possible approval of a 
Commercial Waste Removal and 
Recycling Services Agreement between 
Houston First Corporation and Republic 
Services of Houston.

39  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G

Giant  Leap Coffee
U PTOWN PARK

Chief Financial Officer

FRANK WILSON



RECOMMENDATION

REPUBLIC SERVICES OF HOUSTON

• Request for Proposals Issued April 7, 2023.

• 5 Responses Received.

• Current provider of commercial waste services.

• Current Clients Include:

• Clutch City Sports/Toyota Center 

• Bayou Processing

• Northshore ISD

• Klein ISD

Commercial Waste Removal and Recycling Services

• Diversity Partner (10% Goal)

• XD Ventures

• COH DBE certified

40  H F C  B O A R D  M E E T I N G

✓Unanimously approved by the HFC 
Operations Committee on June 13, 

2023.




	Slide 1: BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
	Slide 2: Public comments
	Slide 3: Minutes
	Slide 4: CHAIRMAN'S REPORT
	Slide 5: PRESIDENT & CEO REPORT
	Slide 6: MAJOR REVENUES & EXPENSES YTD AS OF  MAY 31, 2023
	Slide 7: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE YTD AS OF MAY 31, 2023
	Slide 8: 2023 JUNETEENTH CELEBRATIONS
	Slide 9: 2023 JUNETEENTH CELEBRATIONS
	Slide 10: Rnc update
	Slide 11: BOARD BUSINESS
	Slide 12: ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT SCOPE
	Slide 13: RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
	Slide 14: NET POSITION DECEMBER 31, 2022
	Slide 15:   NET POSITION OVERVIEW
	Slide 16: REVENUES IN 2022 FROM HIGH TO LOW
	Slide 17: OPERATING REVENUES VARIANCE SUMMARY
	Slide 18: OPERATING REVENUES VARIANCE SUMMARY
	Slide 19: EXPENSES IN 2022 FROM HIGH TO LOW
	Slide 20: OPERATING EXPENSES VARIANCE SUMMARY
	Slide 21: OPERATING EXPENSES VARIANCE SUMMARY
	Slide 22: OPERATING REVENUES/EXPENSES VARIANCES 2022 VERSUS 2021
	Slide 23: NON-OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSE VARIANCE(S) 2022 VESUS 2021
	Slide 24: 2022 ANNUAL REPORT VS. CFO MONTHLY REPORT
	Slide 25
	Slide 26
	Slide 27
	Slide 28
	Slide 29
	Slide 30
	Slide 31
	Slide 32
	Slide 33
	Slide 34
	Slide 35
	Slide 36
	Slide 37
	Slide 38
	Slide 39: BOARD BUSINESS
	Slide 40: RECOMMENDATION
	Slide 41
	Board Agenda Packet 6-22-23.pdf
	20230614_111754_7672d1b83XrP_Page_1
	20230614_111754_7672d1b83XrP_Page_2




